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lnnuul Report tnd f;inanciul Stateutentslor The l'ear Ended JU

(a) Background information

Nyangoma Subcounty Hospital is a level 4 hospital established under gazette notice number xxx
and is domiciled in Kisumu County under the Health Department. The hospital is govemed by a
Board of Management.
(b) Principal Activities

The principal activity/mission/ mandate of the hospital is to provide equitable affordable and

quality healthcare all citizens

Vision
A dynamic, excellent and globally competitive county health services, that contribute to the healthy

and productive population.

Mission:
To transform the livelihood of the people of Kisumu County through responsive and Sustainable

technologically driven evidence-based and client centered health system for accelerated attainment

ofthe highest standards ofhealth.

(d) Fiduciary Management

The key management personnel who held office during the financial year ended 30th June 2022 and

who had direct fiduciary responsibility were:

(lnclude all posilions regarded as top management in your organisation)

T

Zebedy OmbijaI

Josephine OdhiangNursing Director2

3

4

5

lv

I. Key Entity Information and Management

(c) Key Management
T'he hospital's management is under the following key organs:
- County department of health
- Board of Management
- Accounting Offrcer/ Medical Superintendent
- Management
- Others (specify)

Medical Superintendent
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Subcounty Hospitol (Kisumu County Government)
rt and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

Fiduciary Oversight Arrangements

provide a high-level description ofthe kcy/iduciary oversight arrangements covering (sayJ)

Clinical Research and Standards Committee.
Audit committee
Risk Committee
County Assembly

arliamentary committees
oversight committees
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(f) Entity Headquarters

P.O. Box 47
Awasi, KENYA

(h)

Entity Contacts

Telephone: (+254) 72387 645 I

Entity Bankers

National Bank of Kenya
AC No. 01021026696100

(D Independent Auditors

Auditor General
Offrce of Auditor General
Anniversary Towers, Institute Way
P.O. Box 30084
GPO 00100
Nairobi, Kenya

0) Principal Legal Adviser

The Attomey General
State Law Offrce
Harambee Avenue
P.O. Box 401l2
City Square 00200
Nairobi, Kenya

(k) County Attorney

P.O. Box.2738-40100
Kisumu, Kenya

(g)

t

vl



I

I

Nyungo
Annuol

a Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu Courtty Governntent)
ort ond Finartciol Statements for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

II. e Board of Management

George Adoyo Magolo ChairmanI

Financial Management2 Moses Otieno Liech

Professional OrganisationMarkdaff Ochieng

4 Roselyne Auma pele

Youth5 Geoffrey Otieno

6 Paul Onyango

PWD7

Zebedy Ombija Medsupt-Secretary8

IrIIIII

vlt

-.l
Women Rep

HCSD

Dorcas Akoth Okoth



IlI. Management Team

I Zebedy Ombija Medsup

2 Josephine Odhiang Nursing Officer Incharge

) Sharon Ouma Clinical Officer incharge

Penilope Achoki Pharmacy Incharge

Esther Achieng IIRIO

Sabina Nyaera CCC incharge

(Note: The Med sup and the Entity Secretary will feature both under the 'Board' and

'Management'.)

v l

4.

5.

6.
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irman's Statement

S

section, the Chairman of the Board of Management will give a brief highlight of the kcy

ing lhe year, successes consolidated, challenges beingfaced, and the wayforward orfuture

hospital)). (Ihe report should be signed by the chairman ofthe governing body.)

ort of The Chief Executive Officer

section, the Medical Superintendent will give his report which highlights the sqme t'ssues as

in q more detailed formot. The Medical Superintendent mqy also mention at a high level

pe rfor manc e of t he or ganis at ion) )
ere should be signed by the Medical Superintendent.)
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VI. Statement Of Performance Against Predetermined Objectives

(Two-lo-three pages)

Section 164 Subsection 2 (f; of the Public Finance Management Act,2012 requires the accounting officer

to include in the financial statement, a statement of the County Government entity's performance against

predetermined objectives.

XXXhas Xstrategic pillars/ themes/issues and objectives within the cunent Strategic Plan for the FY xx-

FY xx. These strategic pillars/ themes/ issues are as follows;

Pillar /theme/issue l:

Pillar/theme/issue 2:

XXX develops its annual work plans based on the above X pillars/Themes/Issues. Assessment of the

Board's performance against its annual work plan is done on a quarterly basis. The XfX achieved its

performance targets set for the FY 20p</20xx period for its xx strategic pillars, as indicated in the

diagram below:

(Under this section therefore, the management should include performance againsl the slrategic

objectives of the organisalion. The management should outline the strategic Pillors, activities towards

their achievement and outputs under each strategic pillar. The organisation should also brieJly outline

how they have tied achievements to performance contracts)

I

Pillar/ theme/ issue l:

Pillar/ theme/ issue I

x
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anagement Discussion and Analysis

II. rporate Governance Statement

e pages

(Under t is section, include the number of Board meelings held and the attendance to those meetings by

members succession plan, existence of a Board charter, process of appointment and removal of Boord
members roles and functions of the Board, induction, and training, Board and member performance,

conflict lnterest, board remuneralion, ethics, and conduct as well as governance oudit.)

VIII.

Some of

pages

(Under t S SCCtion, the manqgement gives a report on the operational and /inancial performance of the

organ$a during the period, entity's key projects or inveslments decision implemented or ongoing,

liqnce with stalutory requirements, major risks facing the organisation, materiql arrears inenlity's
stalutory nd other financial obligations, and any other information considered relevant to the users of
thefinan al statements.)

The ement should make use of tables, graphs, pie charts and other descriptive tools to make the

informati

erational performance

capacity of the hospital,B
o
A

A

M

Sp

B

S

nsorships and partnerships

occupancy rate
ge length ofstay for in patient

ity rate

all patient attendance during the year for both inpatient and outpatient
ident and Emergency attendance

S ialised clinic attendance

cal theatre utilisation (number of operations over a period of time)

linicaU

inancial erformance that includes
re ue sources,

b,emd
uti sation offunds etc

'ment discussion and analysis should be signed by the Chief Executive Officer/Medical

fterinte
ent)

xl

I

Two-to-tt

Two- foul

as understandable as possible. The information should show a trend for the last there years.

details to be included under this section are;
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IX. Environmental And Sustainability Reporting
Two-to-three pages)

XXX exists to transform lives. It's what guides us to deliver our strategy, putting the client/Citizen first,

delivering health services, and improving operational excellence. Below is an outline of the

organisation's policies and activities that promote sustainability. (Tailor make as appropriate).

i) Sustoinobility strutegt and profile

The top manqgement especially the accounting olficer should makc reference to sustainable

efforts, broad lrends in political and macroeconomic affecting sustainability priorities, reference

to inlernational best practices and kcy achievements andfailure.

ii) E nvironmental perfo rmance

Outline clearly, environmental policy guiding lhe organisation, provide evidence of the policy.

Outline successes, shortcomings, eforts to mqnage biodiversity, waste management poltcy and

elforls to reduce environmental impact of the organisation's products.

iii) Employee wefare

Give account of lhe policies guiding the hiring process and whether they take into account the

gender ratio, whether they take in stakeholder engagements and how often they are improved.

Explain efforts made in improving skills and managing careers, appraisal and reward systems.

The organisation should also disclose their policy on safety and compliance with Occupational

Safety and Health Act of 2007, (OSHA.)

iv) Market place practtces-

The organisation should outline its eforts to:

t) Responsible competition proctice.

Explain how the organisation ensures responsible competilion practices with issues like

onti-corruplion, responsible political involvement, fair competition, and respect for
compel itors.

b) Responsible Supply chain and supplier relations

Explain how the organisation maintains good business practices, and lreats its own

suppliers responsibly by honouring contracts and respecting payment practices.

c) Responsible marketing and advertisement

Outline efforts to mainlain ethical marketing practices.

d) Product stewardship

xll

llQttct t,\
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Oulline elforls to safeguard consumer righls and interests.

Corporate Social Responsibility / Community Engagements

The organisation gives details of CSR activities carried oul in the year ond the impact to

the society. Give eyidence of community engqgement including charitable giving (cash

and material), Corporate Social Investment and other forms of community engagements.

xlll
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X. Report of The Board of Management

The Board members submit their report together with the Audited Financial Statements for the year
ended June 30,2022, which show the state of the hospital s affairs.

Principal activities

The principal activities ofthe entity are (continue to be) ....

Results

The results of the entity for the year ended June 30 are set out on page . . . .

Board Of Mansgement

The members of the Board who served during the year are shown on page xxx. During the year xxx
director retired/ resigned and xxx was appointed with effect from xxxx date.

Auditors

The Auditor General is responsible for the statutory audit of the entity in accordance with Article 229 of
the Constitution of Kenya and the Public Audit Act 201 5 or XYZ Certified Public Accountants were
nominated by the Auditor General to carry out the audit of the entity for the yearlperiod ended June 30,
xxx in accordance to section 23 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 which empowers the Auditor General to
appoint an auditor to audit on his behalf.

By Order of the Board

(xxx
To be signed by the Seuetary of the Board)

I
T

xlv

t



Nyangoma ,lbcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual R ort ond Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3At' June 2022

XI Sta ement of Board of Management's Responsibilities

Sgction 16

legislation
of the Public Finance Management Act, 2012 (entities should quote the applicable

nder which they are regulated)) requires the Board of Management to prepare financial
stBtements
the end of
of Manage

respect of that entity, which give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the entity at

e financial yearlperiod and the operating results ofthe entity for that year/period. The Board
ent is also required to ensure that the entity keeps proper accounting records which disclose

od, (ii) maintaining proper accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy at

financial position of the entity, (iii) designing, implementing and maintaining internal
ant to the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, and ensuring that
from material misstatements, whether due to error or fraud, (iv) safeguarding the assets of
) selecting and applying appropriate accounting policies, and (vi) making accounting
are reasonable in the circumstances.

Ap roval of e financial statements

with reaso le accuracy the financial position of the entity. The council members are also responsible
for safe the assets of the entity

rl|"
stdte

f Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the entity's financial
ch give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the entity for and as at the end of the

Board
ments,

fi{ancial ye (period) ended on June 30, 2022. T\is responsibility includes: (i) maintaining adequate
financial m gement arrangements and ensuring that these continue to be effective throughout the
rePorting
any time
controls rel
th{y are fre
the entity;
estlmates

statements as

ThB Board Management accepts responsibility for the entity's financial statements, which have been

pr{pared us appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
esdmates, conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS), and in the
manner req by the PFM Act,20l2 and ( entities should quote applicable legislation as indicated
unfrer). The
visw of the

oard members are of the opinion that the entity's financial statements give a true and fair
of entity's transactions during the financial year ended June 30, 2xxx, and of the entity's

fingncial po n as at that date. The Board members further confirm the completeness of the accounting
remrds mai ned for the entity, which have been relied upon in the preparation of the entity's financial

ell as the adequacy of the systems of intemal financial control.

No[hing has to the attention of the Board of management to indicate that the entity will not remain a

going conc for at least the next twelve months from the date of this statement

p

The Hospital financial statements were approved by the Board on
behalfby

2-- 22-

et)r i n\.q......e.

Name:
Chairperson
Board of M agement

xv

in

and signed on its

C trO fL\ t i) rvao n/,D i

Name: 4'TQS
Accounting Officer
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RT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL ON NYANG'OMA SUB-COUNTY LEVEL 4
ITAL FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE, 2022- COUNTY GOVERNMENT OF

l,rBLE
lpur attention to the contents of my report which is in three parts

B

A.R port on the Financial Statements that considers whether the financial statements
a fairly presented in accordance with the applicable financial reporting framework,
a counting standards and the relevant laws and regulations that have a direct effect
o the financial statements.

port on Lawfulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources which considers
c mpliance with applicable laws, regulations, policies, gazette notices, circulars,
g idelines and manuals and whether public resources are applied in a prudent,
e icient, economic, transparent and accountable manner to ensure the Government
a hieves value for money and that such funds are applied for intended the purpose

port on the Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance
ich considers how the entity has instituted checks and balances to guide internal
erations. This responds to the effectiveness of the governance structure, risk
anagement environment and internal controls, developed and implemented by those
arged with governance for orderly, efficient, and effective operations of the entity

An nmodified opinion does not necessarily mean that an entity has complied with all
ant laws and regulations, and that its internal control, risk management and

gov rnance systems are properly designed and were working effectively in the financial
yea under review

The
nsibilities of the Auditor-General as provided by Article 229 of the Constitution, the

Pu ic Finance Managemenl Ac|2012 and the Public Audit Act, 2015. The three parts of
the eport when read together constitute the report of the Auditor-General

RE ORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

erse Opinion

th e audited the accompanying financial statements of Nyang'oma Sub-County Level4
pital - County Government of Kisumu set out on pages 1 to 51, which comprise of the

Re I of the Auditor-General on Nyang'oma Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
rnmenl of Kisumu
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three parts of the report are aimed at addressing the statutory roles and
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statement of financial position as at 30 June, 2022, and the statement of financial
performance, the statement of changes in net asset, statement of cash flows and
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts for the year ended and a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information in accordance with
the provisions of Article 229 of the Constitution of Kenya and Section 35 of the Public
Audit Act, 2015. I have obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of
my knowledge and belief, were necessary for the purpose of the audit.

ln my opinion, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for
Adverse Opinion section of my report, the financial statements do not present fairly, the
financial position of Nyang'oma Sub-County Level 4 Hospital - County Government of
Kisumu as at 30 June, 2022 and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the
year then ended, in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
Accrual Basis and comply with the Public Finance Management Act, 2012, lhe County
Government Acl,2012 and the Health AcL,2017.

Basis for Adverse Opinion

1. Incomplete Financial Statements

Review of the financial statements revealed that the statement of financial position
reflects cash and cash equivalents balance of Kshs.400,653 under current assets.
However, the statement reflects nil total assets and nil total liabilities as at 30 June,2022
making it not to balance. Further, the statement of changes in net assets reflects nil
balances during the year under review. ln addition, the statement of cash flows reflects
nil balance in respect to cash and cash equivalents while the statement of financial
position reflects a balance of Kshs.400,653.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of balances reported in the
financial statements could not be confirmed.

2. Inaccuracy in Total Revenue Balances

The statement of financial performance reflects total revenue amounts of Kshs.2,813,224,
which, as disclosed in Notes 6, 9 and 11, is made up of transfers from the County
Government, transfers from other Government entities and rendering of services- medical
service income. However, the supporting ledger reflects an amount of Kshs.1,509,890
resulting in unexplained variance of Kshs.1,303,334.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the revenue of Kshs.2,813,224
could not be confirmed.

3. Non-Disclosure of !n-Kind Contributions and Grants

The statement of financial performance and as disclosed in Note 7 and 8 to the financial
statements reflects Nil in-kind contributions and nil grants from donors and development
partners respectively. However, review of data from Kenya Medical Supplies Agency
(KEMSA) revealed that the Hospital received medical and pharmaceutical drugs valued

Report o/the Auditor-General on Nyang'oma Sub-County Level I Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Government of Kisumu

2
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stat

mar

ln
Ksh

atK s.1,400,887 and Kshs.15,559,406 totalling Kshs.16,960,293 from the Government
ya and development partners respectively which were not disclosed in the financial

stat ents

ln th circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the Nil in-kind contributions and
gran

upported Expenses

tatement of financial performance reflects an amount of Kshs.3,191,274 in respect
oft lexpenses which, as disclosed in Notes 15, 16, 17,19 and 21 to the financial

ents, is made up of clinical costs of Kshs.1,378,637, employee costs of
Ksh 602,000, board of management expenses of Kshs.174,000, repairs and

enance amounts of Kshs.350,000 and general expenses of Kshs.686,637.
Ho ver, the amounts have not been supported with general ledgers.

e circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of total expenses of
3,191,274 could not be confirmed.

5. nsupported Cash and Cash Equivalents

The tatement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 27 lolhe financial statements
refl s cash and cash equivalents balance of Kshs.400,653. However, the balance has
not een supported with certificate of bank balance, cashbook and bank reconciliation
stat ments

lnt circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the cash and cash equivalents
ce of Kshs.400,653 could not be confirmed

6. on- Disclosure of Property, PIant and Equipment Balance

tatement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 31 to the financialstatements
refl s a Nil property, plant and equipment balance. However, review of records and
ph ical verification revealed that the entity had several non-current assets that have not
bee
the
add
regi

valued and disclosed in the financial statements. Further, ownership documents for
and, equipment, motor vehicle and motorcycles were not provided for audit. ln
on, the assets are not tagged for ease of identification and tracking and no asset
ter was maintained indicating cost of acquisition, date of acquisition and net book

val S

ln e circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the property, plant and
eq pment balance could not be confirmed

7. ailure to Value Inventory Balances

Th
refl cts Nil balance in respect of inventories. During the year under review, the hospital
pr ured food items, office stationery and supplies, pharmaceuticals and non-
ph aceuticals for its operations that were received and recorded in the stores before
dis ensed to laboratory, pharmacy, wards, kitchen, offices and outpatient units

I ofthe Auditor-General on Nyang'oma Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County

3

Go nment of Kisumu

of Kd

from donors and development partners could not be confirmed.

4.u
The

bala

statement of financial position and as disclosed in Note 30 to the financial statements



However, the inventories were not valued and the balance was not included in the
financial statements as at 30 June,2022.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the Nil inventory balance could
not be confirmed.

8. Variances between Nationa! Hospital lnsurance Fund and Hospital Outstanding
Claims

The statement of financial performance reflects a Nil balance for medical services
contracts as disclosed in Note 25 to the financial statements. The amounts differ from
claims reimbursed from the National Hospital lnsurance Fund (NHIF) amount of
Kshs.76,177 to the Hospital as NHIF Refunds resulting to unreconciled difference of
Kshs.76,177.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of Nil revenue from medical
services contracts could not be confirmed.

9. Non-Disclosure of Employee Costs Paid ln-Kind by The County Government

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in my professional judgement, are of most
significance in the audit of the financial statements. There were no key audit matters to
report in the year under review.

REPORT ON LAWFULNESS AND EFFECTIVENESS IN USE OF PUBLIC
RESOURCES

Conclusion

As required by Article 229(6) of the Constitution and based on the audit procedures
performed, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis for

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Nyang'oma Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Government of Kisumu
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Note 7 to the financial statements reflects a Nil balance as in-kind contributions from the
County Government. The hospital received services from five (5) clinical officers
employed and paid by the county. However, the expenditure was not disclosed in the
financial statements and the payroll was not provided for audit verification.

ln the circumstances, the accuracy and completeness of the Nil in-kind contributions from
the County Government could not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with the lnternational Standards for Supreme
Audit lnstitutions (lSSA|s). I am independent of the Nyang'oma Sub-County Level 4
Hospital Management in accordance with ISSAI 130 on the Code of Ethics. I have fulfilled
other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the ISSAI and in accordance with other
ethical requirements applicable to performing audits of financial statements in Kenya. I

believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for my adverse opinion.



Con usion on LaMulness and Effectiveness in Use of Public Resources section of my
repo , based on the audit procedures performed, I confirm that public resources have not
bee applied lawfully and in an effective way

s for Conclusion

rors and Omissions in Presentation and Disclosures of the Financial
tements

Ba
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ln
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2.

The
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fin
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3.1

a
d
d

w of the financial statements revealed the following errors and omissions in
ntation and disclosure;

The key details regarding the Board of management e.g. passport photos, age,
professional and academic qualifications have not been included in the financial
statement.

Report of the Board of Management, Report of the Chief Executive Officer- medical
superintendent, Statement of performance against predetermined objectives and
the Chairman's Statement giving brief highlight of the key activities during the year,
successes consolidated, challenges being faced, and the way forurard or future
outlook for the hospital are missing.

Management Discussion and Analysis which gives a report on the operational and
financial performance of the organization during the period, entity's key projects or
investments decision implemented or ongoing, entity's compliance with statutory
requirements, major risks facing the organization, is missing instead Management
has attached an extract of statement of financial performance. Further
Clinical/operational performance and financial performance that includes which
includes revenue sources and utilization of funds have not been disclosed.

e circumstances, the financial statements do not comply with the template
mended by the Public Sector Accounting Standards Board

ack ofan Approved Budget

statement of financial performance reflects total revenue and expenditure amounts
hs.2,813,224 and Kshs.3,191,274 respectively. However, approved budget for the
cial year under review was not provided for audit. Further, the total actual revenue
expenditure amounts have not been disclosed in the statement of comparison of
et and actual amounts. Similarly, the budgeted revenue and expenditure amounts
not been disclosed in the statement.

lnt e circumstances, the regularity of the total revenue of Kshs.2,813,224 and total
ex nditure of Kshs.3,191,274incurred by the Hospitalcould not be confirmed

on-compliance with Universal Health Coverage (UHC) Requirements

lnadequate Staffing
Re ew of records provided revealed that the Hospital staffing does not meet the
req irements of the Kenya Quality Model for Health Policy Guidelines for Level 4
Ho pitals as tabulate below

R 't ofthe Auditor-General on Nyang'oma Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County

5
Go nment of Kisumu
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S/N Staff Requirements
Level4

Standard

Number
in

Hospital Variance
Percentage

(%l
1 MedicalOfficers 0 16 100
2 Anesthesiologists 2 0 2 100
3 General Surgeons 2 2 100
4 Gynecologists 2 0 2 100
5 2 0 2
6 Radiologists 2 0 2
7 Registered

Health Nurses
Community 75 7 68 91

Total 101 7 94 93

ln addition, the Hospital does not have an incinerator for waste disposal hence does the
open burning of the wastes leading to environmental pollution.

These deficiencies contravene the First Schedule of the Health Act,2017 and imply that
accessing the highest attainable standards of health may not be achieved, which includes

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Nyang'oma Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Governmenl of Kisumu
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S/N Service

Actuals in
the

Hospital Variance
Percentage
%t

1 Bed capacity 150 142 95
2 lncubators (Newborn) 5 0 5 100
3 Cots 0 5 100
4 Resuscitaire ln Theatre 1 0 1 100

Resuscitaire ln Labour
Ward

2 0 100

Functional ICU Beds 6 0 6 100
7 Hiqh Dependency Unit 0 6 100
8 Renal Unit with Dialysis

Machines
5 100

I Functional Operating
Theatres Maternity and
General

2 100

16

0

Pediatricians 100
100

On aggregate, the Hospital had a staff deficit of ninety-four (94) or 93% of the required
personnel towards achieving the quality health model.

3.2. Sub-Optimal Equipping Level at the Hospital

Review of records and physical verification revealed that the Hospital does not have
facilities to offer surgical, pediatric, radiology, gynecology, and renal services to the
community as detailed below: -

Level4
Hospital
Standard

8

5

5 2

6
6
5 0

0 2



1

ht to health care services, including reproductive health care as required by Article
of the Constitution of Kenya, 2010 may not be achieved

ln th circumstances, the Hospital will not be able to deliver on its mandate.

udit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 4000. The Standard requires that I

y with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance
whether the activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the

ial statements comply, in all material respects, with the authorities that govern them.
ve that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a

REP RT ON THE EFFECTIVENESS OF INTERNAL CONTROLS, RISK
GEMENT AND GOVERNANCEMA

Con !usion

As quired by Section 7(1Xa) of the Public Audit Act, 2015, based on the audit
pro dures performed, because of the significance of the matters discussed in the Basis
for nclusion on Effectiveness of lnternal Controls, Risk Management and Governance

n of my report, I confirm that internal controls, risk management and governance
WE not effective

for Conclusion

ck of a Risk Management Policy

Duri g the financial year under review, the Hospital did not have a risk management policy
in pl ce and therefore, had no approved processes and guidelines on how to mitigate

tional, legal and financial risks. Consequently, the Management did not perform
I risk assessments on all key financial risk areas such as cash, revenue and

exp nditure

The
com

I bel
basi

sect

ope
for

lnt
coul

2.

circumstances, the effectiveness of Management's risk management strategies
not be confirmed.

ck of Audit Committee and lnternal Audit Unit Function

Duri g the year under review, the Hospital did not have an audit committee in place. ln
the bsence of a functioning audit committee, monitoring and review of the effectiveness
oft internal audit process, review of internal controls, risk management systems and
fina cial statements among other functions of an audit committee did not occur which

affect good corporate governance at the Hospital

lna dition, no evidence that the Hospital was subjected to internal audit review by the
Cou ty Executive internal audit department was provided

lnt circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls and governance systems could
not e confirmed

Re t ofthe Auditor-General on Nyang'oma Sub-County Level 4 Hospilal for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
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3. lnternal Control Weaknesses in Management of Revenue

Review of revenue collection system revealed that revenue collection was not automated
and revenue collected was not banked promptly to the revenue collection account.
Further, the collected revenue was not transferred to the Kisumu County Revenue Fund
(CRF) account but spent at the Hospital through an Authority to lncur Expenditure (AlE)
issued by the Chief Officer for Health.

ln the circumstances, the effectiveness of internal controls on revenue management could
not be confirmed.

The audit was conducted in accordance with ISSAI 2315 and ISSAI 2330. The Standards
require that I plan and perform the audit to obtain assurance about whether effective
processes and systems of internal controls, risk management and overall governance
were operating effectively, in all material respects. I believe that the audit evidence I have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my conclusion.

Responsibilities of Management and the Hospital Board of Management

The Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these
financial statements in accordance with lnternational Public Sector Accounting Standards
Accrual Basis and for maintaining effective internal controls as Management determines
is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and for its assessment of the effectiveness
of internal controls, risk management and governance.

ln preparing the financial statements, the Management is responsible for assessing the
Hospital's ability to continue to sustain its services, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to sustainability of services and using the applicable basis of accounting unless
Management is aware of the intention to terminate the Hospital or cease operations.

The Management is also responsible for the submission of the financial statements to the
Auditor-General in accordance with the provisions of Section 47 of the Public Audit Act,
2015.

ln addition to the responsibility for the preparation and presentation of the financial
statements described above, the Management is also responsible for ensuring that the
activities, financial transactions and information reflected in the financial statements
comply with the authorities which govern them and that public resources are applied in
an effective way.

The Board of Management is responsible for overseeing the Hospital's financial reporting
process, reviewing the effectiveness of how Management monitors compliance with
relevant legislative and regulatory requirements, ensuring that effective processes and
systems are in place to address key roles and aesponsibilities in relation to governance
and risk management, and ensuring the adequacy and effectiveness of the control
environment.

Report of the Auditor-General on Nyang'oma Sub-County Level 4 Hospitalfor the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Government of Kisumu
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r-General's Responsibilities for the Audit

udit objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial

finan al transactions and information reflected in the financial statements are in
com iance with the authorities that govern them and that public resources are applied in

ane ctive way, in accordance with the provisions of Article 229(6) of the Constitution
bmit the audit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution.

r, in planning and performing the audit of the financial statements and audit ofFurt
com iance, I consider internal controls in order to give an assurance on the effectiveness

rnal controls, risk management and overall governance processes and systems in

stat
and
ofS
Artic
but i

dete
from
coul
basi

lna
perf

of int

whic
redu
amo

Beca
MISS

a

b

ents as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
issue an auditor's report that includes my opinion in accordance with the provisions
ion 48 of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit the audit report in compliance with
229(7) of the Constitution. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls will always
a material misstatement and weakness when it exists. Misstatements can arise

raud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the
of these financial statements.

ition to the audit of the financial statements, a compliance audit is planned and
ed to express a conclusion about whether, in all material respects, the activities,

se of its inherent limitations, internal controls may not prevent or detect
tements and instances of non-compliance. Also, projections of any evaluation of

acco ance with the provisions of Section 7(1)(a) of the Public Audit Act, 2015 and submit
the a dit report in compliance with Article 229(7) of the Constitution. My consideration of
the i rnal controls would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal controls that
migh be material weaknesses under the lSSAls. A material weakness is a condition in

the design or operation of one or more of the internal control components does not
to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused by error or fraud in

ts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited may
OCCU and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of
perfo ing their assigned functions

effe ness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become
inad uate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
polici

Asp

s and procedures may deteriorate

rt of an audit conducted in accordance with lSSAls, I exercise professional
judg ent and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also

td ntify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
ether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to

th se risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
is for my opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from
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a

a

O

a

fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal controls.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by Management.

Conclude on the appropriateness of Management's use of the applicable basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the ability of
the Hospital to continue to sustain its services. lf I conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, I am required to draw attention in the auditor's report to the related disclosures
in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my
opinion. My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of
my audit report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Hospital to cease
to continue to sustain its services.

a Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures and whether the financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

FCPA CBS
AUDITOR-GENERAL

Nairobi

19 June,2024

Report ofthe Auditor-General on Nyang'oma Sub-County Level 4 Hospital for the year ended 30 June, 2022 - County
Governmenl of Kisumu
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Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information and
business activities of the Hospital to express an opinion on the financial statements.

Perform such other procedures as I consider necessary in the circumstances

I communicate with Management regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal controls that are identified during the audit.

I also provide Management with a statement that I have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on my independence and where
applicable, related safeguards.



Ny tlgomo Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu Courtty Government)
An uol Report and Financial Statemenlsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

XIII Statement of Financial Performance for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

Rer enue from non-exchange transactions

sfers from the County Government 6 2,549,834 xxx

In- l jnd contributions from the County Govemment 1 0 xxx

Gra ts from donors and development partners 8 0

9 260,460 xxx

ic contributions and donations 0 xxx

2,810,294 xxx

:nue from exchange transactions

Ren lering of services- Medical Service Income ll 2,930 xxx

xxxrnue from rent offacilities 12 0

rce /Interest Income l3 0 xxx

r income (spectfu) 0 xxx

nue from exchange transactions 2,930 xxx

Totr I revenue 2,913,224

Expr Inses

Med caUClinical costs l5 1,379,637 xxx

Emp ovee costs xxx

Boar I of Management Expenses t7 xxx

"'ciation and amortization expense 18 174,000

Repa irs and maintenance l9 350,000 xxx

Gran s and subsidies 20 0

Gene ral expenses 2l 686,637 xxx

ce costs xlL\22 0

Tota, expenses 3,191,274 xxx

: gains/(losses)

Gain rn disposal of non-Current assets xxx

Unret .lized gain on fair value of investments 24 xxx0

rral

xxx

sfers from other Govemment entitiesTrai
I

Publ l0

Revl

Revl

Find

othd t4

Revi

xxx

16 602,000

oep4 xxx

xxx

Finad

othd

23 0

I



lnnual Report ond l'ittuttcioi Stuteuen$ fur I he l'car l:'rtdul Jt

Medical services contracts Gains/Losses 25 0

Impairment loss 26 0 xxx

Gain on foreign exchange transactions 0 xxx

Total other gains(losses) 0 xxx

Net Surplus for the year (378,050) xxx

Attributable to:

Surplus/ (d efi cit) attri butabl e to mi nority interest (xxx)

Surplus attributable to owners of the controlling entity xxx

(378,050) xxx

lt--xxx

(lhe notes set out on pages x to xxform an integral part of the Annual Financial Slalements.)

The Hospital's financial statements were approved by the Board on
signed on its behalfby:

.&t+.ut*.1...

Chairman

Board of Management

Head of Finance

ICPAK No:

Medical Superintendent

and
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Ny dgomo Subcounty Hospitol (Kisumu Counly Governmenl)
An ual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

Statement of Financial Position as of 30th June2022

Liab

Asse ts

'etrt assets

xxx27

Rece 28 xxxivables from exchange transactions

Rece vables from non-exchange transactions 29 xxx xxx

30 xxx xxxLtories

I Current Assets xxx xxx

current assets

Propr 3l xxxrrty, plant, and equipment

3ible assets 32 xxx

Inves [nent property xxx xxx

Tota xxx xxx

essets xxx

lities

Curr rnt liabilities

Tradt and other payables 34 xxx

Refur 35 xxx xxxdable deposits from customers/Patients

xxx;lons 36 xxx

37 xxx xxx;e lease obligation

rl portion of defened income 38 xxx xxx

Curre rt portion of borrowings 39 xxx xxx

Current Liabilities xxx

urrent liabilities

36 xxxlons

37 xxx xxx)urrent Finance lease obligation

)unent portion of deferred income 38 xxx xxx

39 xxxNon - Current portion of borrowings

:e concession liability 40 xxx xxx

Non-current liabilities xrx
Total Liabilities xxx xxx

3

xIv.

Curl
CasH and cash equivalents 400,653

xxx

Invei

Total

Nonl
xxx

xxxI ntari

JJ

Non-current Assets

xxxTotal

xxx

Provil

Finan

Currd

Totd xxx

Non-i

Provil xxx

Non-(

Non-(

xxx

Servil

xxxTotal!



(epof I u(l t uratrct(l Jt/I(etnefil.$ Jor I lte I ear Ittrde(
I

(The notes set oul on pages x to xxform an inlegral part of the Annual Financial Slatemenls.)

The Hospital's frnancial statements were approved by the Board on
signed on its behalf by:

...82r.V*.u..

and

Chairman
Board of Management

Head of Finance
ICPAK No:

Medical Superintendent

Net assets

Revaluation reserve xxx xxx

Accumulated surplus/Defi cit xxx xxx

xxx xxxCapital Fund

xxxxxx

xxxTotal Net Assets and Liabilities

4

C

xxx

ffiI KtsrnL_l



A
ngonro Subcouttty llospilal (Kisumu County Government)
ual Report and Financiol Slntementsfor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

x Statement of Changes in Net Asset for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

orltems that are nol common in the /inancial statements, the entity should include q nole on
hat they relate to - either on the face of the statement of changes in equity/nel assets or
mong the noles to the /inancial statements

(No

'fior yeat adjustments should have an elaborate note describing what the amounts relate to
such instances, a restqtement ofthe opening bqlqnces needs to be done.)

Qh

2

The
sign

ospital's hnancial statements were approved by the Board on
on is behalfby:

-)) and

Cha an
Iloa of Management

Medical Superintendent

As xxxrt July 1,2020 xxx xxx

xxxaluation gain xxx

ilu/(deficit) for the year xxx

cat itaVDevelopment grants xxx xxx

Asl rt June 30,2021 xxx

At. uly l,2021

x xx xx

Rev rluation gain xxx xxx

,lus(deficit) for the year xxx xxx

taVDevelopment grants xxx xxx

AtJ une30,2022 xxx xxx xxx xxx

5

notes set out on pages x to xx form an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements.)

ffM ...........k:rp................

llead of l-inancc
ICPAK NO:
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XVI. Statement of Cash Flows for The Year Ended 30 June 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Transfers from the County Govemment 2,549,834 xxx

Grants from donors and development partners 0 xxx

Transfers from other Government entities 260,460 xxx

Public contributions and donations 0

Rendering of services- Medical Service Income 2,930 xxx

Revenue from rent offacilities 0 xxx

0 xxxFinance / interest income

Other receipts (spe c {y ) 0 xxx

xxxTotal Receipts

Payments

1,379,637 xxx

Employee costs xxx

xxxBoard of Management Expenses 174,000

Repairs and maintenance 350,000 xxx

Grants and subsidies xxx

xxxGeneral expenses 686,637

xxxFinance costs 0

Refunds paid out 0 xxx

3,191,274Total Payments

Net cash flows from operating activities 41 xrf
Cash flows from investing activities

(xxx)Purchase ofproperty, plant, equipment, & intangible assets 0

Proceeds from the sale ofproperty, plant, and equipment 0 xxx

Acquisition of investments 0 (xxx)

Net cash flows used in investing activities 0 (xxx)

Cash flows from financing activities

0 xxxProceeds from borrowings

(xxx)Repayment of bonowings 0

xxxCapital grants received

(xxx)Net cash flows used in financing activities 0

T

T

6

Receipts

xxx

2,813,224

Medical/Clinical costs

602,000

0

xxx

(378,050)

0
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ma Subcout ly Hospital (Kisumu Couttty Governntent)
A al Report and Financial Slatemenls for The Year Ended 3Ah lune 2022

2 allows qn entity to presenl the cash/low statement using the direct or indirecl method
urages the direct method. PSASB also recommends the use of direct method of cash/low
on)

tes set out on pages x to xx form an integral part of the Annual Financial Statements. The
Ho
on

tal's financial statements were approved by the Board on
behalfby:

Ch an

pr

of Management
Head of Finance
ICPAK No:

Medical Superintendent

-..--.*. 1
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DEPARi'/ !N cl Hi ItIH i SANI Il0

P.O. Bo< 7 21 ' d0l 00,

KISLJ/,ATJ

Nel I (xxx)ncrease/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Cas .I and cash equivalents at I July 27 xxx

Car h and cash equivalents at 30 July 27 xxx
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Nyangoma SubCounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financial Statemenls for The Year Ended 30h June 2022

XVII. Statement Of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts For The Year Ended 30 June 2022

f=dlc"h

%
o//o

o//o
O//o
o//tt

o/o

O//o

%

o//o

%
%
o//o
O//o
o//o
O/

%
Yo

%

A c{a+b) d e=(c_d)
Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs Kshs

Revenue
Transfers from the Co Govemment xxx xxx xlLx xxx xxx
Grants from donors and development xxx xxx xxx

)L}LX xxx xxx xxx xxx
Public contributions and donations xxx xxx xxx xxx
Rendering of services- Medical Service
Income

xxx xxx xxx xxx

Revenue from rent of facilities xxx xxx xxx xxx
Finance / interest income xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx

Total income xxx xxx xxx xxx TIX
Ex enses

MedicaUClinical costs xx\ xxx xxx xxx xxx
Em lo ee costs xxx xxx xxx xxx
Remuneration of directors xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx

airs and maintenance xxx )LXX xxx xxx xxx
Grants and subsidies xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx
General ex nses xxx )L\X xxx xxx )L\X
Finance costs xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx
Refunds xxx xxx xxx xxx rxx
Su lus for the riod xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx
Ca ital ex enditure xrx xxx xxx xxx

I

o/o

b

partners
xxx xxx

Transfers from other Govemment entities
xxx

xxx

xxx

Other receipts (spe c ify)

xxx

xxx



Annual Re rt and Financial Statements r The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

(Budget notes
I . Prov l4

an explanation of changes between the original andJinal budget tndicating whether the difference is due to
reallocations or other causes. (IPSAS 24.29)
3. Where the total of actual on comparable basis does not tie to the statement offinancial performance totals due to dffirences in
accounting basis ftudget is cash basis, statement ofJinancial performance is accrual) provide a reconciliation.)
The notes set out on pages x to xx form an integral of the Annual Financial Statements. The Hospital's financial statements
were approved by the Board on signed on is behalfby:
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Chairman
Board of Management
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N1'uttgorrut Subuunl; I{ospitul (Kisuuru Courtll, Govertturcttl)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

XVIII. Notes To the Financial Statements a
l. General Information

xxx entity is established by and derives its authority and accountability from xxx Act. The entity is

wholly owned by the Covernment of Kenya and is domiciled in Kenya. The entity's principal

activity is xxx.

2. Statement Of Compliance And Basis Of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis except for the measurement

at re-valued amounts of certain items of property, plant, and equipment, marketable securities and

financial instruments at fair value, impaired assets at their estimated recoverable amounts and

actuarially determined liabilities at their present value. The preparation of financial statements in

conformity with International Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS) allows the use of

estimates and assumptions. It also requires management to exercise judgement in the process of

applying the entity's accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or

complexity, or where assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements, are

disclosed in Note xx The financial statements have been prepared and presented in Kenya

Shillings, which is the functional and reporting curency of the entity.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the PFM Act, and (include any

other applicable legislation), and Intemational Public Sector Accounting Standards (IPSAS). The

accounting policies adopted have been consistently applied to all the years presented.

3. Adoption of New and Revised Standards

IPSASB deferred the application date of standards from l't January 2022 owing to Covid 19, This

was done to provide entities with time to effectively apply the standards. The defenal was set for I't

lanuary 2023.

T

t0
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Nyun. oma Subcounly Hospitol (Kisumu Counly Governmenl)
Ann IR ort ond Financial Statemenlsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

No lo the Financial Slatemenls (Conlinued)

and amended standards and interpretations in issue but not yet effective in the year ended

IPS

Inst

Fin

4t:

c ial

nts

Applicable: I't January 2023:

The objective of IPSAS 4l is to establish principles for the financial reporting of

financial assets and liabilities that will present relevant and useful information to

users of financial statements for their assessment of the amounts, timing and

uncertainty of an Entity's future cash flows.

IPSAS 4l provides users of financial statements with more useful information than

IPSAS 29, bY:

. Applying a single classification and measurement model for financial assets

that considers the characteristics of the asset's cash flows and the objective

for which the asset is held;

. Applying an improved hedge accounting model that broadens the hedging

arrangements in scope of the guidance. The model develops a strong link

between an Entity's risk management strategies and the accounting treatment

for instruments held as part of the risk management strategy.

(State the impacl otthe standard lo the Entity if relevanl)

IPSA

Social Benefits

42: Applicable: l't January 2023

The objective of this Standard is to improve the relevance, faithful representativeness

and comparability of the information that a reporting Entity provides in its financial

statements about social benefits. The information provided should help users of the

financial statements and general-purpose financial reports assess:

(a) The nature ofsuch social benefits provided by the Entity;

(b) The key features ofthe operation ofthose social benefit schemes; and

ll

L

Jrne2022.

. Applying a single forward-looking expected credit loss model that is

applicable to all financial instruments subject to impairment testing; and
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Annual Report and Finoncial Slatementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

T

Amendments to

Other IPSAS

resulting from

IPSAS 4I ,

Financial

Instruments

Applicable: lst January 2023:

a) Amendments to IPSAS 5, to update the guidance related to the components of

borrowing costs which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was

issued.

b) Amendments to IPSAS 30, regarding illustrative examples on hedging and

credit risk which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

c) Amendments to IPSAS 30, to update the guidance for accounting for

financial guarantee contracts which were inadvertently omitted when IPSAS

4l was issued.

Amendments to IPSAS 33, to update the guidance on classiffing financial

instruments on initial adoption of accrual basis IPSAS which were inadvertently

omitted when IPSAS 4l was issued.

(State the impact of the standard to the Entiy if relevant)

Other

improvements to

IPSAS

Applicable Ia January 2023

o IPSAS 22 Disclosure of Financial Information aboul lhe General Government

Seclor.

Amendments to refer to the latest System of National Accounts (SNA 2008).

o IPSAS 39 Employee Benefits

Now deletes the term composite social security benefits as it is no longer defined in

IPSAS.

o IPSAS 29: Financial instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Standard no longer included in the 2021 IPSAS handbook as it is now superseded by

IPSAS 4l which is applicable from I't Jmuary 2023.

Stale the impact ol the slandard lo lhe Entity if relevonl

IPSAS 43 Applicable I't lonuary 2025

The standard sets out the principles for the recognition, measurement, presentation,

and disclosure of leases. The objective is to ensure that lessees and lessors provide

relevant information in a manner that faithfully represents those transactions. This

information gives a basis for users of financial statements to assess the effect that

t2

(c) The impact of such social benefits provided on the Entity's financial performance,

financial position and cash flows.

(Slote the lmpacl of lhe standard to the EnfiA if relevanl)



ongot ro ubcounly Hospilol (Kisumu County Governmenl)

A nual R rl and Financial Slalements or The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

ii. E adoption ofstandards

e entity did not early - adopt any new or amended standards in the year xx./xx

{ Summ Of Significant Accounting Policies

recognition

Revenue from non-exchange transactions

Transfers from other Government entities

) Reven

i)

Revenues non-exchange transactions with other government entities are measured at fair value

and reco ized on obtaining control ofthe asset (caslr, goods, services, and properly) if the transfer is

nditions and it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential related to the

ow to the entity and can be measured reliably

free from

asset will

leases have on the financial position, financial performance and cashflows of an

Entity.

The new standard requires entities to recognise, measure and present information on

right of use assets and lease liabilities.

Stote the impocl of lhe standard to the EiliA if relevant

Applicable I't Jonuary 2025

The Standard requires,

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be measured at the

lower of carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell and the depreciation od such

assets to cease and:

Assets that meet the criteria to be classified as held for sale to be presented separately

in the statement of financial position and the results of discontinued operations to be

presented separately in the statement offinancial performance.

State the impact olthe stondard to the Entig if relevant

PSAS 44:

urrent As

eld for Sa

iscontinul

perations

nd

f,lon-

ists

le

d

t
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T
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Nl,angoma Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu Counly Government)

Noles to lhe Financial Statemenls (Continued)

Revenue from erchange transactions
Rendering of services

The entity recognizes revenue from rendering of services by reference to the stage of completion when

the outcome of the transaction can be estimated reliably. The stage of completion is measured by

reference to labour hours incurred to date as a percentage of total estimated labour hours. Where the

contract outcome cannot be measured reliably, revenue is recognized only to the extent that the expenses

incurred are recoverable.

Sale ofgoods

Revenue from the sale ofgoods is recognized when the significant risks and rewards ofownership have

been transferred to the buyer, usually on delivery

of the goods and when the amount of revenue can be measured reliably, and it is probable that the

economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the entity.

Interest income

Interest income is accrued using the effective yield method. The effective yield discounts estimated

future cash rec€ipts through the expected life of the financial asset to that asset's net carrying amount.

The method applies this yield to the principal outstanding to determine interest income for each period.

Dividends

Dividends or similar distributions must be recognized when the shareholder's or the entity's right to

receive payments is established.

Rental income

Rental income arising from operating leases on investment properties is accounted for on a straight-line

basis over the lease terms and included in revenue.
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lo lhe Financial Slalemenls (Conlinued)

b) Bu ct information
'thc iginat budget for FY xxx was approved by Board on xrrr Subsequent revisions or additional

appro ions were made to the approved budget in accordance with specific approvals from the

appro

recelv g the respective approvals in order to conclude the final budget. Accordingly, the entity recorded

additi appropriations of xxxx on the FY xrx budget following the Board's approval. The entity's

budg is prepared on a different basis to the actual income and expenditure disclosed in the financial

nts. The financial statements are prepared on accrual basis using a classification based on the

f expenses in the statement of financial performance, whereas the budget is prepared on a cash

e amounts in the financial statements were recast from the accrual basis to the cash basis and

reclas by presentation to be on the same basis as the approved budget

Aco ison ofbudget and actual amounts, prepared on a comparable basis to the approved budget, is

then p sented in the statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. In addition to the Basis

diffe ce, adjustments to amounts in the financial statements are also made for differences in the formats

and c ification schemes adopted for the presentation of the financial statements and the approved

budget

statem

nature

basis.

com

A statement to reconcile the actual amounts on a comparable basis included in the statement of

son of budget and actual amounts and the actuals as per the statement of financial performance

has

l5

authorities. The additional appropriations are added to the original budget by the entity upon

presented under section xxx ofthese financial statements.
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Noles lo the Financial Slutements (Continued)

c) Taxes

Sales tax./ Value Added Tax

Expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of sales tax, except:

) When the sales tax incuned on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the

taxation authority, in which case, the sales tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of

the asset or as part ofthe expense item, as applicable.

) When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of sales tax included. The net amount

of sales tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of

receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.

d) Investment property

Investment properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying amount

includes the replacement cost of components of an existing investment property at the time that cost is

incurred if the recognition criteria are met and excludes the costs of day-to-day maintenance of an

investment property.

Investment property acquired through a non-exchange transaction is measured at its fair value at the date

of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are measured using the cost model

and are depreciated over a period ofxn years. Investment properties are derecognized either when they

have been disposed of or when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future

economic benefit or service potential is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net

disposal proceeds and the carrying amount ofthe asset is recognized in the surplus or deficit in the period

of de-recognition. Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use.

e) Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. When significant

parts ofproperty, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the entity recognizes such

parts

as individual assets with specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly. Likewise, when a major

inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a

replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized

in surplus or deficit as incurred. Where an asset is acquired in a non-exchange transaction for nil or

nominal consideration the asset is initially measured at its fair value.

l6



f) Lea

the le

Nyun Subcounly Hospitul (Kisumu County Governmenl)
Ann I Report and Financial Slatementsfor The Year Ended 3Oh June 2022

No lo the Financial Slatements (Conlinued)

leases are leases that transfer substantially the entire risks and benefits incidental to ownership of

d item to the Entity. Assets held under a finance lease are capitalized at the commencement of the

lease the fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at the present value of the future minimum lease

ts. The Entity also recognizes the associated lease liability at the inception of the lease. The

recognized is measured as the present value of the future minimum lease payments at initial

paym

asset is

expens

liabili

recog lon

t to initial recognition, lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction

of the e liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability

Finan charges are recognized as finance costs in surplus or deficit

An as held under a finance lease is depreciated over the useful life ofthe asset. However, ifthere is no

le certainty that the Entity will obtain ownership of the asset by the end of the lease term, the

epreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and the lease term.

reaso

Operat g leases are leases that do not transfer substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to

owne ip of the leased item to the Entity. Operating lease payments are recognized as an operating

in surplus or deficit on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

tangible assets

Intan ble assets acquired separately are initially recognized at cost. The cost of intangible assets

d in a non-exchange transaction is their fair value at the

f the exchange. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any

lated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Intemally generated intangible assets,

exclu ing capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in surplus or

ih the period in which the expenditure is incurred. The useful life of the intangible assets is

asscs as either finite or indefinite

acqur

date

defici

l7

.l

Finand

Subse{

0I

accufl
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Notes lo the Financial Slatemenls (Continued)

h) Research and development costs

The Entity expenses research costs as incurred. Development costs on an individual project are

recognized as intangible assets when the Entity can demonstrate:

DThe technical feasibility of completing the asset so that the asset will be available for use or sale

) Its intention to complete and its ability to use or sell the asset

)The asset will generate future economic benefits or service potential

DThe availability of resources to complete the asset

)The ability to measure reliably the expenditure during development.

Following initial recognition of an asset, the asset is carried at cost less any accumulated amortization

and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when development is complete

and the asset is available for use. It is amortized over the period of expected future benefit. During the

period of development, the asset is tested for impairment annually with any impairment losses

recognized immediately in surplus or deficit.

i) Financialinstruments

Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets within the scope of IPSAS 29 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement are

classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit, loans and receivables, held+o-

maturity investments

or available-for-sale financial assets, as appropriate. The Entity determines the classification of its

financial assets at initial recognition.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are

not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently

measured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is

calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

integral part of the effective interest rate. Losses arising from impairment are recognized in the surplus

or deficit.

t

t8
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No lo the Financial Slatemenls (Continued)

-to-maturity

AS eld to maturity when the Entity has the positive

tn ntion and ability to hold it to maturity. After initial measurement, held-to-maturity investments are

m ured at amortized cost using the effective interest method, less impairment. Amortized cost is

cal ulated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an

tn al part of the effective interest rate. The losses arising from impairment are recognized in surplus

lcr

Im rirment of financial assets

Entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset orTh

an tity of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or an entity of financial assets is deemed to be

lm iI and only i[, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that

hav occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred 'loss event') and that loss event has

an pact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or the entity of financial assets that

can reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include the following indicators

II

Fina

The debtors or an entity ofdebtors are experiencing significant financial difliculty

Default or delinquency in interest or principal payments

The probability that debtors will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization

Observable data indicates a measurable decrease in estimated future cash flows (e.g. changes in

arrears or economic conditions that conelate with defaults)

lal liabilities

classi

All fi

Initi

Finan ial liabilities within the scope of IPSAS 29 are classified as financial liabilities at fair value

surplus or deficit or loans and bonowings, as appropriate. The Entity determines the

cation of its financial liabilities at initial recognition

cial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings,

plus d tly attributable transaction costs

l9

Nd .derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturities are classified

recognition and measurement

throu!

or



Notes to the Financiol Sloten enls (Conlinued)

Loans and borrowing

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and bonowings are subsequently measured at amortized

cost using the effective interest method. Gains and losses are recognized in surplus or deficit when the

liabilities are derecognized as well as through the effective interest method amortization process.

Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or

costs that are an integral part ofthe effective interest rate.

i) Inventories

Inventory is measured at cost upon initial recognition. To the extent that inventory was received through

non-exchange transactions (for no cost or for a nominal cost), the cost of the inventory is its fair value at

the date of acquisition.

Costs incuned in bringing each product to its present location and conditions are accounted for as

follows:

)Raw materials: purchase cost using the weighted average cost method

DFinished goods and work in progress: cost of direct materials and labour, and a proportion of

manufacturing overheads based on the normal operating capacity, but excluding borrowing costs

After initial recognition, inventory is measured at the lower cost and net realizable value.

However, to the extent that a class of inventory is distributed or deployed at no charge or for a nominal

charge, that class of inventory is measured at the lower cost and the current replacement cost.Net

realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of operations, less the estimated

costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale, exchange, or distribution.

Inventories are recognized as an expense when deployed for utilization or consumption in the ordinary

course ofoperations of the Entity.

j) Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Entity has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result ofa

past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential

will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation.

Where the Entity expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, for example, under an insurance

contract, the reimbursement is recognized as a separate asset only when the reimbursement is virtually

certain.

20
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expense relating to any provision is presented in the statement of financial performance net ofany

rcl ment

Co ngent liabilities

The ntify does not recognize a contingent liability, but discloses details of any contingencies in the

not to the financial statements, unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic

ts or service potential is remote.

ingent assets

ntity does not recognize a contingent asset, but discloses details of a possible asset whose

exis ce is contingent on the occurrence or non-occurence ofone or more uncertain fufure events not

y within the control of the Entity in the notes to the financial statements. Contingent assets are

ass ed continually to ensure that developments are appropriately reflected in the financial statements

If it as become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits or service potential will arise and

the set's value can be measured reliably, the asset and the related revenue are recognized in the

ial statements of the period in which the change occurs.fin

k) ture and purpose ofreserves

The Entity creates and maintains reserves in terms of specific requirements. (Entity to state the

reserves maintained and appropriate policies adopted.)

Changes in accounting policies and estimatesr)

The ntity recognizes the effects ofchanges in accounting policy rehospectively. The effects ofchanges

ln nting policy are applied prospectively ifretrospective application is impractical

ben

m)

Reti

The

Employee benefits

ment benefil plans

tity provides retirement benefits for its employees and directors. Defined contribution plans are

ployment benefit plans under which an entity pays fixed contributions into a separate entity (a

and will have no legal or constructive obligation to pay further contributions if the fund does not

hold fficient assets to pay all employee benefits relating to employee service in the

and prior periods. The contributions to fund obligations for the payment of retirement benefits

are c ged against income in the year in which they become payable. Defined benefit plans are post-

empl t benefit plans other than defined-contribution plans. The defined benefit funds are

act lly valued tri-annually on the projected unit credit method basis. Deficits identified are recovered

lump-sum payments or increased future contributions on a proportional basis to all participating

ers, The contributions and lump sum payments reduce the post-employment benefit obligation

throu

emplo

2t

I

Anni

The

Con

The

whol

po't-t

fund)f

currerl
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Noles lo the Financial Statements (Conlinued)

n) Foreign currency transactions

Transactions in floreign currencies are initially accounted for at the ruling rate ofexchange on the date of

the transaction. Trade creditors or debtors denominated in foreign currency are reported at the statement

of financial position reporting date by applying the exchange rate on that date. Exchange differences

arising fiom the settlement ofcreditors, or from the reporting of creditors at rates different from those at

which they were initially recorded during the period, are recognized as income or expenses in the period

in which they arise.

o) Borrowing costs

Bonowing costs are capitalized against qualifying assets as part of property, plant and equipment.Such

borrowing costs are capitalized over the period during which the asset is being acquired or constructed

and bonowings have been incurred. Capitalization ceases when construction of the asset is complete.

Further bonowing costs are charged to the statement of financial performance.

p) Related parties

The Entity regards a related party as a person or an entity with the ability to exert control individually or

jointly, or to exercise significant influence over the Entity, or vice versa. Members of key management

are regarded as related parties and comprise the directors, the CEO/principal and senior managers.

q) Senice concession arrangements

The Entity analyses all aspects of service concession arrangements that it enters into in determining the

appropriate accounting treatment and disclosure requirements. In particular, where a private party

contributes an asset to the arrangement, the Entity recognizes that asset when, and only when, it controls

or regulates the services. The operator must provide together with the asset, to whom it must provide

them, and at what price. In the case of assets other than 'whole-of-life' assets, it controls, through

ownership, beneficial entitlement or otherwise - any significant residual interest in the asset at the end

ofthe arrangement, Any assets so recognized are measured at their fair value. To the extent that an asset

has been recognized, the Entity also recognizes a corresponding liability, adjusted by a cash

consideration paid or received.
T

22
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Cash and cash equivalents

and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and cash at bank, short-term deposits on call and

r)

hig ly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less, which are readily convertible

own amounts of cash and are subject to insignificant risk of changes in value. Bank account

bal ces include amounts held at the Central Bank of Kenya and at various commercial banks at the end

e financial year. For the purposes of these financial statements, cash and cash equivalents also

incl short term cash imprests and advances to authorised public officers and/or institutions which

we

s) mparative figu res

wh necessary comparative figures for the previous financial year have been amended or reconfigured

toc form to the required changes in presentation.

tbsequent events

have been no events subsequent to the financial year end with a significant impact on the financial

statc ents for the year ended June 30, 20XX.

C

0
The

5.

The

m

pre

to ma

in the

reparation of the Entity's financial statements in conformity with IPSAS requires management to

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses,

and liabilities, and the disclosure of contingent liabilities, at the end of the reporting period.

How er, uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that require a

mat al adjustment to the carrying amount of the asset or liability aflected in future periods

Esti tes and assumptions

The y assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the

repo ng date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of

assets 4nd liabilities within the next financial year, are described below. The Entity based its

assu ons and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financial statements were

, However, existing circumstances and assumptions about future developments may change due

ificant Judgments and Sources of Estimation Uncertainty

changes or circumstances arising beyond the control ofthe Entity. Such changes are reflected

sumptions when they occur.( IPSAS 1.140)

toH

of

not surrendered or accounted for at the end of the financial year.

23
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Noles lo the Finoncial Statemenls (Continued)

Useful lives and residual values

The useful lives and residual values of assets are assessed using the following indicators to inform

potential future use and value from disposal:

processes.

Provisions

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available.

Additional disclosure of these estimates of provisions is included in Note xxx.

Provisions are measured at the management's best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the

obligation at the reporting date and are discounted to present value where the effect is material.

(lnclude provisions applicable for your organisation e.g provision for bad debts, provisions of obsolete

slocks and how management eslimales lhese provisions).

24
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nsfers From The County Government

Un :onditional grants

Op, rrational grant 2,549,834 xxx

el 5 grants xxx
et grants xxx

xxx

Use r fee forgone xxx

Tra tsforming health services for Universal care project (THUCP) xxx
.IIDA xxx

War ds Development grant xxx

iatric block grant xxx

xxx
)ratory grant

Totr 2,549,834 xxx

25

6.

L.l
ot4

Col ditional grants

DAI

Pael

Linistration block grantAdd

Labl xxx
.l government grants and subsidies
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Noles lo lhe Financial Statements (Continued)

6 Transfers from The County Government

(Ensure that the amount recorded above as having been received from the County fully reconciles to the

amount recorded by the amount recorded as lranslerred by the County. An acbtowledgement
note/receipt should be raised in favour of the sending County Govemment. The details of the

reconciliation have been included under appendix nx).
7. In Ktnd Contributions from The County Government

(lhese include payments made directly by the County Governments for staf salaries and medical
drugs. These should be recorded both as income and expense for completeness offinancial statements)

L Grants From Donors snd Development Partners

(Provide brief explanation for lhis revenue)

xx County
Government 2,549,834 xxx xxx xxx 2,549,834

Total 2,549,934 xxx xxx xxx 2,549,834

Salaries and wages xxx

Pharmaceutical and Non-Pharmaceutical Supplies xxx

Medical supplies-Drawings Rights (KEMSA) xxx

utility bills xxx

Total grants in kind 0 xxx

Cancer Centre grant- DANIDA xxx
World Bank grants xxx

Research grants xxx
Other grants (specify) xxx
Total grants from development partners 0 xxx

26

Paediatric ward grant- JICA xxx
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Nol, lo lhe Financial Slatements (Continued)

8 ) Grants from donors and development partners (Classification)

9 nsfers From Other Government Entities

10.

(Prov

Donfr e.g., DANibA
JIC4
worla nank

Totaf 0 0 0 0

Tran{fer from National Covernment (Ministry of Health)-UHC 200,000 xxx
rranffer from Naiiona nosp ital Hospital Insurance Fund 60,460 LXX

TotalTransfers 260,460 xxx

jq1{lonatil; xxx
ponafgns from local leadership xxx
oonalions from reli gioui institutions xxx
Do ions from other intemational organisations and individuals xxx

hnations(specify) x)LX

ons in kind-amortised xxx
Total [onations and sponsorships 0

I

I

I

I

blic Contributions and Donations

brief explanation for this revenue)

0

Other

Donal

xxx

ll

27
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Notes lo the Financiul Slalements (Continued)

l0 (a)Reconciliations of amortised grants

I l. Rendering of Services-Medical Service Income

(other medical services fee relates to other charges not listed above)

Balance unspent at beginning of year xxx

xxxCurrent year receipts

Amortised and transfened to revenue xxx

0 xxxConditions to be met - remain Iiabilities

xxxPharmaceuticals

Non-Pharmaceuticals xxx

xxxLaboratory
xxxRadiology

Orthopedic and Trauma Technology xxx

Theatre xxx

Accident and Emergency Service xxx

xxxAnesthesia Service

Ear Nose and Throat service xxx

xxx

xxxCancer centre service

xxx

xxxReproductive health

Paediatrics services xxx
xxxFarewell home services

Other medical services income xxx

2,930 xxxTotal revenue from the rendering ofservices

28

Nutrition service

Dental services
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lo lhe Financial Statements (Conlinued)

12. evenue From Rent of Facilities

(Provide brief explanationfor this revenue)

nance /Interest Income

e brief explanation for this revenue)
er Income

(N8,,

used
ll lncome should be classified as far as possible in the relevant classes and other income should be
rccognise income not elsewhere classi/ied).

(Pro
t4.

dential property xxx

xxx,mercial property

Totr rl Revenue from rent of facilities 0

xxxCas4 investments and fixed deposits

tntefst income from short- term/ current deposits xxx

xxxInte{st income from Treasury Bills

Intefist income from Treasury Bonds xxx

Intefist from outstanding debtors xxx

Tot{ tinance income 0

Insulnce recoveries xxx
lncolne from sale oftender xxx
Servftes concession income xxx
Sate pfgoods (water, publications, containers etc) xxx
Totaf other income 0

29
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Notes lo the Financial Statements (Continued)

15. MedicaU Clinical Costs

(Other medical/clinical related costs rders to all other costs involved in management o/ the patients
directly not oulysed above.)

Employee Costst6.

0 xxx
Laboratory chemicals and reagents I 10,000 xxx
Public health activities 0

xxx
Uniform, clothing, and linen 0 xxx
Dressing and Non-Pharmaceuticals 92,390 xxx
Pharmaceutical supplies xxx
Health information stationery 8 r,000 xxx
Reproductive health materials 0 xxx
Sanitary and cleansing Materials 55,000 xxx
Purchase of Medical gases xxx
X-Ray/Radiology supplies 0 xxx
Other medical related clinical costs (specfy) 0 xxx
Total medicaU clinical costs 1,378,637 xxx

Salaries, wages, and allowances 602,000 xxx
Contributions to pension schemes 0 xxx
Service gratuity 0

Performance and other bonuses 0 xxx
Staffmedical expenses and Insurance cover 0 xxx
Group personal accident insurance and WIBA 0 xxx
Social contribution 0 xxx
Other employee costs (specify) 0 xxx
Employee costs 602,000 xxx

(Social conlribution relales to expenses incurred by the employer towards social welfure of Employees)

30

Dental costs/ materials

xxx
Food and Ration 104,000

936,247

0

xx
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oard of Management Expenses

18. ation And Amortization Expense

19. prirs And Maintenance

Chafman's Honoraria Xxx xxx

Sittifg allowance 174,000 xxx

Mil{ge Xxx xxx
Insuftnce expenses Xxx xxx

Indultion and training Xrcx xxx
Tra I and accommodation allowance Xxx xxx
Airtilre allowances Xxx xxx
Totaf 174,000 xxx

ProRfty, plant and equipment

Intan sible assets xxx
Inve{ment property carried at cost xxx
Totaldepreciation and amortization xxx

Prop{ty- Buildings xxx
fr{edifrl equipment 56,000 xxx
Offic{ equipment 0 xxx

Fumi{rre and fittings 0 xxx
Complters and accessories xxx
Motoilvehicle .*p.n..t 190,000 xxx

Maindnance of civil works 0 xxx

Total lrepairs and maintenance 350,000 xrx

3l

17.

xxx

0

104,000

0



Nyangoma Subcounly Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Reporl and Financial Stolemenlsfor The Year Ended 3(lh June 2022

21. General Expeoses

xxxCommunity development and social work
xxxEducation initiatives and programs

xxx

xxxDisability programs

xxx

xxxOther grants and subsidies( specfy)

0 xxxTotal grants and subsidies

xxxI t 5,000General Oflice Supply

32,000 xxxCatering expenses

20,000 xxxPurchase of computers

xxx130,000Refined fuels and lubricants

xxx76,027Other fuels (charcoal LPG gas)

xxxBank charges

xxxConferences and delegations

xxxConsultancy fees

xxxContracted services

xxxElectricity expenses

xxxInsurance

Research and development expenses

xxx150,000Travel and accommodation allowance

xxxLegal expenses

xxxLicenses and permits

xxxCourier and postal services

xxxPrinting and stationery

xxxHire charges

xxxRent expenses

xxxWater and sewerage costs

xxxSkills development levies

xxx50,000Telephone and mobile phone services

xxx

t

Notes to the Financial Statemenls (Conlinued)

20. Grants And Subsidies

Free,/ subsidised medical camp

Free cancer screening

8,6r0

105,000

xxx

Intemet expenses

32
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Ann Repoil and Financial Stalements r The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

22. ance Costs

(Bo wing costs that relate to interest experue on acquisilion of non- current assels and do not quali/y for
Capit, ation as per IPSAS 5: on bonowing costs should be included under this note.)

in/Loss On Disposal Of Non-Current Assets

24. U realized Gain On Fair Value Investments

Sta{training and development xxx

Sub{criptions to professional bodies xxx
Subftriptions to newspapers periodical,
mag[zines, and gazette notices

xxx

f-ibrf ry books/lVlaterial s

Parklng charges

Tot{ Ceneral Expenses 686,637

Bon{wings (amortized cost) + )cxx

Finarlce leases (amortized cost) xxx xxx

tnter{st on Bank overdrafts/Guarantees xxx )cxx

Inter$l on loans from commercial banks xxx xxx

Total linance costs xxx xxx

Prop{ty, plant, and equipment

h?:Et ble assets xxx
Otherlssets not cap;tatised lspecifyl xxx
Totalpain on sale ofassets 0 xxx

Investr rents at fair value xxx

Total I aln 0 xxx

@

23.

xxx

)c\x

xxx

xxx

xxx

3l



Nyangoma Subcounly Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Reporl ond Financial Stalemenls for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

Notes lo lhe Finoncial Slalemenls (Continued)

25. Medical Services Contracts Gains /Losses

26. Impairment Loss

27. Cash And Cash Equivalents

(The amounl should agree with the closing and opening balances as included in the statement of cash

flows)

xxxComprehensive care contracts with NHIF
xxxNon- Comprehensive contracts care with NHIF

Linda Mama Program

xxxWaivers and Exemptions

xxx0Total Gain/Loss

xxxProperty, plant, and equipment

xxxIntangible assets

xxx0Total impairment loss

xxx653Current accounts

xxxOn - call deposits

xxxFixed deposits accounts

xxxCash in hand

400,000 xxx202012021 Q4 Exchequer disbursement

xxx400,653Total cash and cash equivalents

34
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Not to lhe Financial Statements (Continued)

27 a etailed An ofCash and Cash E uivalents

28. elvables From Exchange Transactions

rrent account

Na ional Bank of Kenya 653 xxx

Su r total xxx

b) orl ers(specify) xxx

202 0/2021 Q4 Exchequer disbursement 0t021026696100 xxx

Sul " total 400,000 xxx

Gn rnd total xxx400,653

Medic rl services receivables xxx

Rent rr ceivables xxx

Other r rxchange debtors rcc\

Less: i npairment allowance (xxx)

Total 'eceivables 0 xxx

35

I

Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)

a) Cu
0102 I 0266961 00

653

400,000



Nyongomt Subcounly Hospital (Kisumu County Governmenl)
Annual Report and Financial Statemenlsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

xxxTransfers from the County Govemment xxx

xxx xxxUndisbursed donor funds

xxx xxxOther debtors (non-exchange tonsactions)

(xv.x) (xxx)Less: impairment allowance

xxrTotal xxx

Noles lo lhe Financial Stotemenls (Conlinued)

29. Receivablqs From Non-Exchange Transactions

(Undisbursed donor funds refer to funds expected where conditions for disbursements have been met by the
recipienl as at the reporting date)

30. Inventories

T

xxx xxx

Maintenance supplies xxx xxx

xxx xxx

Linen and clothing supplies xxx xxx

Cleaning materials supplies )LXX xxx

General supplies xxx xxx

Less: provision for impairment of stocks (xxx) (xxx)

xxx xxx

36

IPharmaceutical supplies

Food supplies

Total
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Nyangoma Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Governmen t)
Annual Report and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

31. Property, Plant and Equipment

Cost

xxx xxx xxx xxx x)(x xxx xxx
Additions xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx
Disposals (xx

x)
(xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xx

x)
TransferVadjustments x)LX (xxx) xxx

(xx
x)At 30th June 2021 xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx

At lstJuly 2021 xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx
Additions xxx xxx xxx )L\X xxx xxx xxx
Disposals (xx

x)
(xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xy.x)

(xxx) (xx
x)Transfer/adjustments xxx xxx (y-rx)

At 30th June 2022 xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx

tm airment
At lJuly 2020 xlx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx
Depreciation for the year x)(x xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx
Disposals (xx (xxx) (xy.x) (xxx) (xxx) (xx

37

Nolpt

At lJuly 2020 xIx

xxx xxx

xxx

xxx

xxx xxx

Depreciation and

xxr

(xxx)



Nyangoma Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Reporl and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

x) x)

Impairment
(xx
x)

(xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xx
x)

At 30 June 2021 xxx xxx xxx xxx xxx x-xx xxx
At July 2021 xxx xxx xxx rxx xxx xxx xxx
Depreciation xx\ xxx xrc\ xxx xxx xxx xxx

Disposals
(xx
x)

(xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xv.x)
(xx
x)

Impairment
(xx
x)

(xxx) (y.y'x) (xxx) (xxx) (xxx) (xr
x)

Transfer/adjustment xxx (xxx) (xx
x)

At 30th June 2022 xxx xxx xrx xxx xxx xxx xxx

Net book values

At 306 June 2021 LX-X xx-x )cxx xxx x-x-\ xxx xx_x )cxx

At 306 June 2022 xxx )LLX xxx xxx xxx xxx xx\ xxx

38

III I
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Nyangoma Subcounly Hospilal (Kisumu County Government)
Annuol Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah fune 2022

Cost

At beginning of the year xxx xxx

xxx xxx
Additions-lntemal development xxx xxx
Disposal (xxx)

xxx xxx

Amortization and impairment

At beginning of the year xxx
Amortization for the period xxx xxx
Impairment loss xxx )cxx

At end of the year xxx xxx
NBV xxx xxx

At beginning of the year xxx xxx
itions xxx xxx

iair value gain xxx xxx
)epreciation (where investment property is at cost) (xxx) (xxx)
\t end ofthe year xxx

.I
rade payables xxx

)L\X

rird-party payments (unremitted payroll deductions) xxx

D tors'fee xxx
T rtal trade and other payables xxx xxx

Noles to the Financial Stotements (Continued)

32. Intangible Assets-Software

Investment Property

Trade And Other Payables

39

341

Additions

(xxx)
At end ofthe year

xxx

xxx

xxx
q mployee dues xxx

xxx
{ rdit fee

xxx
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Nyungoma Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu Counly Govemmenl)
Annual Report and Financial Stalements lor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

xxxxxxMedical fees paid in advance

xxx xxxCredit facility deposit

xxxxxxRent deposits

xxxxxxOthers (specify)

xxxxxxTotal deposits

Noles to lhe Financial Slatements (Conlinued)

35. Refundable Deposits from Customers/Patients

36. Provisions

37. Finance Lease Obligation

t

T

xxx xxxxxxBalance at the beginning of the year
xxxxxxxxx xxxAdditional Provisions

(v,xx)(xxx) (xxx)(xxx)Provision utilised
(xxx) (xv.x)(xxx)(xxx)Change due to discount & time value for money

xxx xxxxxrxxxTotal provisions

xxxxxxxxx xxxCurrent Provisions
xxxxxxxxx xxxNon-Current Provisions
xxxxxxxxxTotal Provisions

KshsKshs

xxxxxxCurrent Lease obligation
xxxxxxLong term lease obligation
xxxXxxTotal

40

xxx

xxx
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Notes to the Financial Stotements (Continued)

Deferred Income

38 (a) The deferred income movement is as follows:

Borrowings

Current Portion xxx xxx
Non-Current Portion xxx xxx

xxx xxx

Balance b/f xxx xxx xxx xxx
Additions during the year xxx xxx xxx

Iransfers to Capital fund (xxx) (v-rx) (xxx) (xx
x)

Iransfers to statement of
!4qqc ql performance

(xv.x) (v-xx) (xxx) (xx
x)

)ther transfers (S p e c rfy) (xvx) (xxx) (xv-x)
(xx
x)

lalance C/F xxx xxx xxx xxx

I lalance at beginning of the period xxx xxx
I ixtemal borrowings during the year xxx
I )omestic bonowings during the year xxx xxx
I qpayments of external borrowings during the year (xvx)
t epayments of domestic borrowings during the year (xv.x) (xy.x)

l alance at end ofthe period xxx

4l

Total

)L\X

l

xxx

(xv.x)

xxx
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Nyangoma Subcount! Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Report and Financiol Slalements for The Year Ended 3th June 2022

Notes to the Financial Stalements (Conlinued)

39. (a; Breakdown of Long- And Short-Term Borrowings

(Cunent portion of borrowings are those bonowings that are payable within one year or the next

/inorcial year. Additional disclosures on terrns of borrowings, nature of bonowings, security and

interesl rates should be disclosed).

40. SerryiceConcessionArrangements

41. Cash Generated from Operations

(The total of this slalement should tie to the cash flow section on net cas

xxxxxxCunent Obli tion
xxx xxxNon-Current Obligation

xxxTotal

xxxxxxized under PPEFair value of service concession assets recogn

xxx(xxx)Accumulated depreciation to date

xxxxxxNet c ln amount
xxxxxxService concession liability at beginning ofthe year

(xxx)(v,xx)

xxxxxxService concession liability at end of the year

Ad usted for:
xxxxxx

(xv,x)(xxx)Non-cash ants received
xxxxxxImpairment

(xxx)(v,v.x)Gains and losses on dis osal of assets
xxxxxxContribution to provisions
xxxxxx

Working Capital adj ustments
(xx.x)(vxx)Increase in inventory
(xxx)(xxx)Increase in receivables
xxxxxxIncrease in deferred income
xxxxxxIncrease in payables
xxxxxxIncrease in payments received in advance
xxxxxxNet cash flow from operating activities

in operations)

42

h flows front/ used

xxx

Service concession revenue recognized

Depreciation

Contribution to impairment allowance
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Nyangoma Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Reporl and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

lo

ass

Noles to lhe Financial Statements (Continued)

2. Financial Risk Management

Th entity's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks including credit and liquidity risks

effects of changes in foreign currency. The company's overall risk management programme

ses on the unpredictability of changes in the business environment and seeks to minimise the

an

po tial adverse effect of such risks on its performance by setting acceptable levels of risk. The

co pany does not hedge any risks and has in place policies to ensure that credit is only extended to

cu mers with an established credit history

Th entity's financial risk management objectives and policies are detailed below

(i) Credit risk

Th entity has exposure to credit risk, which is the risk that a counterparfy will be unable to pay

aln ts in full when due. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents, and deposits with

s, as well as trade and other receivables and available-for-sale financial investments

M ent assesses the credit quality of each customer, taking into account its financial position,

past experience and other factors. Individual risk limits are set based on internal or extemal

sment in accordance with limits set by the directors. The amounts presented in the statement

of cial position are net of allowances for doubtful receivables, estimated by the company's

m gement based on prior experience and their assessment of the cunent economic environment

The arrying amount of financial assets recorded in the financial statements representing the

enti 's maximum exposure to credit risk without taking account of the value of any collateral

obta ed is made up as follows

43
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Nyangomo Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Governmenl)
Annual Reporl and Financial Slotemenlsfor The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

Notes lo the Financial Statemenls (Conlinued)

I
I

At 30 June 2020

xxx xxx xxxReceivables from exchange transactions xxx
xxxxxx xxx xxxReceivables from -non-exchange transactions

xxx xxxBank balances xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxx xxxTotal

At 30 June 2022

xxx xxxReceivables from exchange transactions xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxxBank balances

xxx xxx xxx xxxTotal

44

Receivables from -non-exchange transactions xxx

xxx

(NB: The totals column should tie to the individual elements of credit risk disclosed in the entity's
s I at e me nt of fi nanc i al p os i t ion)

The customers under the fully performing category are paying their debts as they continue

trading. The credit risk associated with these receivables is minimal and the allowance for

uncollectible amounts that the company has recognised in the financial statements is considered

adequate to cover any potentially irrecoverable amounts. The entity has significant concentration

of credit risk on amounts due from xxxx

The board of management sets the company's credit policies and objectives and lays down

parameters within which the various aspects of credit risk management are operated.

(ii) Liquidity risk management

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the hospital's board of

management who have built an appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the

management of the entity's short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity management

requirements. The entity manages liquidity risk through continuous monitoring of forecasts and

actual cash flows.

The table below represents cash flows payable by the company under non-derivative financial

liabilities by their remaining contractual maturities at the reporting date. The amounts disclosed

in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2 months equal

their carrying balances, as the impact ofdiscounting is not significant.
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Nyangoma Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Reporl and Financial Statementsfor The Yeor Ended 3Ah June 2022

xlcx xxx )LXX xxx
Current portion of bonowings xxx x.xx xxx
Provisions xxx xxx xxx
Deferred income xxx xxx xxx
Employee benefit obligation xxx xxx

xxx xxx xxx xxx
At 30 June 20xx

Trade payables xxx xxx xxx xxx
Current portion of borrowings xxx xxx xxx
hovisions xxx xxx xxx xxx
Deferred income xxx xxx )L\X xxx
Employee benefit obligation xxx xxx KL\
Total xxx xxx xxx xxx

(i Market risk

e hospital has put in place an intemal audit function to assist it in assessing the risk faced by

entity on an ongoing basis, evaluate and test the design and effectiveness of its intemal

a unting and operational controls. Market risk is the risk arising from changes in market

p s, such as interest rate, equity prices and foreign exchange rates which will affect the

ty's income or the value of its holding of financial instruments. The objective of market risk

m Pgement is to manage and control market risk exposures within acceptable parameters,

le optimising the retum. Overall responsibility for managing market risk rests with the Audit

Risk Management Committee.

45

At 30 June 20xx
Trade payables

xxx

xxx

xxx

xxx xxx
Total

xxx

xxx

TI

wH
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Nyangomo Suhcounly Hospital (Kisumu County Governmenl)
Annual Reporl and Financial Stulemenlsfo r The Year Ended 3(fh June 2022

The entity manages foreign exchange risk from future commercial transactions and recognised
assets and liabilities by projecting expected sales proceeds and matching the same with expected
payments.

t

xxx xxxFinancial assets (investments, cash, debtors)

Liabilities
xxx xxxTrade and other payables xxx

xxxxxx xxxBorrowings

xxx xxxNet foreign currency assetl (liabi li ty) xxx

xxx xxx xxxFinancial assets (investments, cash, debtors)

Liabilities

Trade and other payables xxx xxx xxx

Borrowings xxx xxxxxx

Net foreign currency asset/ (l i ab il i ty) xxx xxx xxx

46

Notes lo the Financlol Stalemenls (Continued)

The company's Finance Department is responsible for the development of detailed risk

management policies (subject to review and approval by Audit and Risk Management Committee)

and for the day-to-day implementation of those policies. There has been no change to the entity's

exposure to market risks or the way it manages and measures the risk.

a) Foreign currency risk
The entity has transactional currency exposures. Such exposure arises through purchases ofgoods

and services that are done in currencies other than the local currency. Invoices denominated in

foreign currencies are paid after 30 days from the date of the invoice and conversion at the time of

payment is done using the prevailing exchange rate. The carrying amount of the entity's foreign

currency denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end of the reporting period

are as follows:

At 30 June 20xx
xxx

At 30 .Iune 20xx
I
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lor year
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2Oxx
Euro t0% xxx xxx
USD t0% xxx xxx

t0% xxx xxx
USD t0% xxx

oma Subcounty Hospilol (Kisumu County Government)
nnual Report ond Financial Slalements or The Year Ended 3Uh June 2022

Notes lo the Financial Stotements (Continued)

Foreign currency sensitivity analysis

Ihe following table demonstrates the effect on the company's statement of financial

performance on applying the sensitivity for a reasonable possible change in the exchange rate

of the three main transaction currencies, with all other variables held constant. The reverse

would also occur if the Kenya Shilling appreciated with all other variables held constant.

nterest rate risk

terest rate risk is the risk that the entity's financial condition may be adversely affected as a

ult of changes in interest rate levels. The company's interest rate risk arises from bank

posits. This exposes the company to cash flow interest rate risk. The interest rate risk

posure arises mainly from interest rate movements on the company's deposits,

anagement of interest rate risk

o manage the interest rate risk, management has endeavoured to bank with institutions that

ffer favourable interest rates

ensitivity analysis

e entity analyses its interest rate exposure on a dynamic basis by conducting a sensitivity

ysis. This involves determining the impact on profit or loss of defined rate shifts. The

sitivity analysis for interest rate risk assumes that all other variables, in particular foreign

change rates, remain constant. The analysis has been performed on the same basis as the

s

20xx
Euro

xxx

rl



Nyungomo Subcounty Hospitul (Kisuntu Counly Government)
Annual Report and Financial Slatementsfor The Year Ended 3Ah June 2022

Noles to the Financial Stalemenls (Continued)

Using the end of the year frgures, the sensitivity analysis indicates the impact on the

statement of financial performance if current floating interest rates increase/decrease by one

percentage point as a decrease/increase of KShs xxx (20xx: KShs xxx). A rate

increase/decrease of 5%o would result in a deuease/increase in surplus of KShs xxx (20xx -
KShs xxx).

iv) Capital Risk Management

The objective of the entity's capital risk management is to safeguard the Hospital's

ability to continue as a going concem. The entity capital structure comprises of the

following funds:

43. Related Party Balances

Nature of related party relationships

Entities and other parties related to the entity include those parties who have the ability to

exercise control or exercise significant influence over its operating and financial decisions.

Related parties include management personnel, their associates, and close family members.

Government of Kenya

The Govemment of Kenya is the principal shareholder of the entity, holding 100% of the entity's

equity interest. The Government of Kenya has provided full guarantees to all long{erm lenders ofthe

entity, both domestic and extemal. Other related parties include:

xxxxxxRevaluation reserve

xxxxxxRetained eamings

xxxxxxCapital reserve

xxxxxx'fotal fu nds

xxx xxxTotal borrowings

(xv.x) (xv.x)Less: cash and bank balances

xxx xxxNet debU (excess cash and cash equivalents)

xxYo vaYoGearing

48
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Annuol Reporl and Financial Stolemenls for The Yeor Ended 3Ah June 2022

Transactions with related parties

a) Services offered to related parties

Services to xxx xxx

xxx xxx
Total xxx xxx

b) Grants from the Government

Grants from County Govemment xxx
Crants from the National Covernment Entities xxx xxx
Donations in kind xxx
Total xxx xxx

) Expenses incurred on behalfofrelated parfy
Payments of salaries and wages for xxx employees xxx xxx
Payments for goods and services for xxx xxx
Total xxx xxx

d ) Key management compensation

Directors' emoluments xxx xxx

xxx

xxx xxx

Total xxx

I

Notes to the Financial Statements (Continued)

i) The National Government;

ii) The Parent Ministry;

iii) Xxx;

iv) Xxx;

v) Xxx;

vr) Key management;

vii) Board of directors;

49

xxx
Sales of services to xxx

xxx

I
xxx

I

(

xxx

Compensation to the medical Sup xx.\
Compensation to key management

xxx
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Annual Report and Financial Stalenrcnls for The Year Ended 3(lh June 2022

Notes to lhe Financial Slatemenls (Conlinued)

44. Segmentlnformation

(Where an organisation operates in diferent geographical regions or in deparlments, IPSAS 18

on segmental reporting requires an entity lo presenl segmental information of each geographic

region or department to enable users understand the entity's performance and allocation o/
resources to diferent segments)

45. ContingentLiabilities

(Give details)

46. CapitalCommitments

47, Evenls After The Reporting Period

There were no material adjusting and non- adjusting events after the reporting period.

48. Ultimate And Holding Entity

The entity is a State Corporation/ or a Semi- Autonomous Govemment Agency under

the Ministry of xxx. Its ultimate parent is the Government of Kenya.

49. Currency
The financial statements are presented in Kenya Shillings (Kshs)

T

T

xxxxxxCourt case xxx against the company

xxxxxxBank guarantees in favour of subsidiary

xxxxxx

Kshs Ituhs

xxxxxxAuthorised For

xxx xxxAuthorised And Contracted For

xxxxxxTotal

50

Total

Q'{B: Capital commitments are commilmenls to be carried out in the next finotcial year and are

disclosed in accordance with IPSAS 17. Capital commitments may be those that have been aulhorised
by the board but at the end of the year had not been conlracled or those already contracted for and
ongoing)
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Nyangoma Subcounty Hospital (Kiswnu County Government)
r The Year Ended 30h June 2022Annual R rt and Financial Statements

Appendix l: Progress on Follow Up Of Auditor Recommendations
The following is the summary of issues raised by the external auditor, and management comments that were provided to the auditor. We havenominated focal persons to resolve the various issues as shown below with the associated time frame within which we expect the issues to be
resolved.

Guidance Notes:

(i) Use the same reference numbers as contained in the extemal audit report.

(ii) Obtain the "lssuey'Observation" and "management cornments", required above, from the final external audit report that is signed by
Management.

(iii) Before approving the report, discuss the timeframe with the appointed Focal Point persons within your entity responsible the for
implementation of each issue.

(iv) Indicate the status of "Resolved" or'Not Resolved" by the date of submitting this report to National Treasury.

Accounting Officer
(To be signed by the accounting offcer of the Hospital)

51



Nyangomt Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu County Government)
Annual Reporl and Financial Statements for The Year Ended 3Ah tune 2022

APPEIYDX II: Projects Implemented by The Entify
Proj ects
Projects implemented by the Hospital Funded by development partners

Status of Projects completion

(Summarise the status ofproject completion at the end of each quarter, i.e. total costs incurred, stage which the project is etc)

2

I

)

J

a,t
I

52
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r
I I ns ert y o ur Iz ile rheadJ

pnsert nome of beruJiciary entityJ
pnsert AddressJ

The [ircert sc/sAG'4/Fund name hereJ wishes to confirm the amounts disbursed to you as at 306 June 2022 asindicated in the table below.
il,T[r::ITt}:ffi:niJ::H:t:tf i t'lJ" 

amounts vou received and popuiate tt 
" 
.ot,r,,r-ii ,r," ,"ur. u"ro* pr"*"',ign and stamp

Amounts Disbursed b SC/SAGA/Fund asat30th lune2022hs

Reference
Number

Date
Disbursed

Recunent (A) Development (B) Inter-
Ministerial

(c)

Total
(DF(A+Brc)

Amount Rece ived
by [beneficiary

entityl
(KShs) as at 306

June 2021

Differences
(KShs)

(F)=(D-E)

Total

In confirm ttratih\ounts shown above are correct as of the date indicated./ :-. \
Head ofdccoa nililL)epartment of benefi ciary entity:'!

.................... siName

53
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Nyangoma Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu Counly Governmcnl)
Annual Report and Financial Statementsfor The Year Ended 3N June 2022

APPEIYDX V Reporting of Climate Relevant Expenditurm

Name of the Organ ization

Telephone Number

Email Address

Name of Medical Supp/Tv{D/Head

Name and contact details of contact person (in case ofany clarifications)

Ql Q2 Q3 Q4

54
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Nyangoma Subcounty Hospital (Kisumu Cou
Annual R and Financial Statements for

ENDD( VI Disaster Expenditure Reporting Template

nty Government)
The Year Ended JF fune 2022

Period to
which this
report refers

Quarter

Name of
Reporting
Officer
Contact
details ofthe
reporting
officer:

Email
Telephone

Column II Column III Column IV Column V Column VI Column VIIProgramme Sub-
prognunme

Disaster
Type

isaster related Activity that
require expenditure reporting

ess

Category ofd

on/res mitinse/recov

Expenditure
item

Amount
(Kshs.)

55

Year

Column I

Comments
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